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BEFORE THE
ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF:  

E-COM DISPATCH CENTER

Petition for approval of a 
9-1-1 emergency telephone 
number system.

)
)
)
)
) 
)
)

No. 05-0574

Chicago, Illinois
October 5, 2005

Met, pursuant to notice, at 1:30 p.m. 

BEFORE:

Ms. Leslie Haynes, Administrative Law Judge

APPEARANCES:

MS. DIANA WIESSNER 
1154 Ridge Road 
Homewood, IL  60430 

for the petitioner;

MS. SELINA BROWN 
4918 West 95th Street 
Oak Lawn, IL  60465 

for SBC Corporation;

MS. MARCI SCHROLL 
527 East Capitol Avenue 
Springfield, IL  62701 
(217) 782-4911

for ICC Staff.

SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY, by
Jean M. Plomin, CSR, RPR
License No. 084-003728
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I N D E X

       Re-    Re-   By
Witnesses:  Direct Cross direct cross Examiner

D. Wiessner 5

S. Brown 23

  E X H I B I T S

Number     For Identification       In Evidence

None.
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JUDGE HAYNES:  Pursuant to the direction of the 

Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call Docket 

05-0574.  This is the petition of E-Com Dispatch 

Center for approval of a 9-1-1 emergency telephone 

number system.  

May I have your names and addresses 

for the record, please.

MS. WIESSNER:  My name is Diana Wiessner.  I'm 

the executive director of E-Com Dispatch Center at 

1154 Ridge Road, R-i-d-g-e, in Homewood, Illinois, 

60430.

JUDGE HAYNES:  Could we get your last name 

spelled?  

MS. WIESSNER:  W-i-e-s, as in Sam, s, as in 

Sam, n-e-r. 

JUDGE HAYNES:  Thank you.

MS. BROWN:  My name is Selina Brown.  That's 

spelled S-e-l-i-n-a.  I'm with SBC, 9-1-1 operations 

manager.  My address is 4918 West 95th Street in 

Oak Lawn, Illinois, 60465.

MS. SCHROLL:  And on behalf of the Staff of the 

Illinois Commerce Commission, Marci, M-a-r-c-i, 
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Schroll, S-c-h-r-o-l-l.  I'm the 9-1-1 program 

manager for the 9-1-1 program located at 527 East 

Capitol Avenue, Springfield, Illinois.  My phone 

number, (217) 782-4911. 

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Are there any further 

appearances?  

MS. WIESSNER:  No.

JUDGE HAYNES:  Let the record reflect there are 

none.

Who would like to begin?  Does the 

petitioner have a statement to make today?

MS. WIESSNER:  No.  Marci, why don't you go 

ahead with the questioning. 

MS. SCHROLL:  I do have some questions that I 

would like to ask.  I guess we'll start off with the 

petitioner if you want to swear her. 

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  

(Witnesses sworn.)

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Go ahead, Ms. Schroll.

MS. SCHROLL:  Yes.  This is Ms. Schroll from 

Staff.  And I'd like to start off by questioning the 

petitioner.  
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For the record, I would like to 

question Diane Wiessner -- 

MS. WIESSNER:  Correct.

MS. SCHROLL:  -- the director of E-Com. 

DIANE WIESSNER,

called as a witness herein, having been first duly 

sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY

MS. SCHROLL:

Q Diane, have you been authorized to 

represent the petitioner in this proceeding? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Is the authority oral or written? 

A It's written. 

Q Diane, can you please summarize why E-Com 

has filed this petition? 

A It's to join three separate police dispatch 

centers into a consolidated dispatch center off 

premise from the police department. 

Q Can you please state those three entities? 

A The three entities are the Village of 
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Homewood, the Village of Glenwood and the Village of 

Flossmoor. 

Q And currently these three entities maintain 

and run their own 9-1-1 systems separately; is that 

correct?  

A That is correct. 

Q And so the purpose of your filing is to 

create one system and join those three systems into 

the one system, correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q In order to create E-Com, you entered into 

an intergovernmental agreement with all three of 

these entities? 

A That is correct.  We followed Section 15-4 

of the ETS act, and we have created an 

intergovernmental agreement with all the towns. 

Q Okay.  Great.  

Will the communities of Flossmoor, 

Glenwood and Homewood be petitioning the Commission 

to request dismissal of their original authority to 

operate? 

A That is correct.  We have filed those 
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documents with you already; and once we are approved, 

they should go into place. 

Q Very good.  

In this petition E-Com is asking the 

Villages of Flossmoor, Glenwood and Homewood be 

granted authority to consolidate and operate as a 

joint 9-1-1 system; however, the intergovernmental 

agreement also names Hazel Crest.  

Why isn't Hazel Crest being included 

in this filing? 

A There was a delay with Hazel Crest.  They 

had a change of mayor in the community.  And after 

the intergovernmental agreement was signed, he was 

not sure if they were going to come into the center.  

And we now have heard from them and will be filing a 

modification to our approval in a few months to come. 

Q Okay.  So currently this petition is only 

asking to join Flossmoor, Glenwood and Homewood? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay.  Diane, can you please summarize the 

planning stages and how the system will operate? 

A We are going -- we, through grant funding, 
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have new equipment being installed on site here.  And 

before anyone will be cut over, we will test all the 

equipment to make sure everything is functioning 

correctly and within the guidelines provided by 725, 

and then we will cut everyone over and operate as a 

9-1-1 center combining the three towns. 

Q Can you explain what you mean by cut over? 

A Oh, we will test all the 9-1-1 trunk lines, 

all the radio circuits and make sure that everything 

is functioning with the 1 percent -- under the 

1 percent ratio for the 9-1-1 trunk lines before we 

start cutting over each town for them to ring into 

the new center.

Q So the plan would be to disconnect their 

service where their 9-1-1 calls come in at this point 

at their own dispatch center and divert those 9-1-1 

calls to the new E-Com Dispatch Center, correct? 

A Correct, that is correct. 

Q What is the location of E-Com which will be 

primary? 

A The address is 1154 Ridge Road in Homewood, 

Illinois, 60430, and the phone is (708) 799-3787. 
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Q Does this public safety answering point -- 

and I'm going to use the acronym PSAP, P-S-A-P -- 

serve any other purpose than 9-1-1? 

A No. 

Q What other functions will it be providing?

A We will be doing police and fire dispatch 

and alarm monitoring only. 

Q How many positions are at your PSAP? 

A Five. 

Q Do you have a backup PSAP? 

A Yes.

Q Where is it located? 

A Matteson, Illinois, South Com Dispatch 

Center.  

Q Who is currently a 9-1-1 center? 

A Correct. 

Q Do you have a written intergovernmental 

agreement with South Com? 

A Yes, I do.  

Q How many positions are at their facility? 

A They also have five. 

Q Great.  
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Will the critical areas of the primary 

and the backup PSAPs have adequate physical security 

to provide against the malicious destruction of 

service? 

A Yes.  Our facility will have security 

cameras and will be totally locked down with card key 

access only for the employees, and there will be a 

burglar alarm system and a fire alarm system at the 

facility, and they also have the same at the backup 

facility.  

Q So the area where your dispatchers and the 

equipment are located and your equipment room, that 

is all in a locked area away from direct public 

contact? 

A They will have no public contact 

whatsoever. 

Q Will both of your PSAPs, your primary and 

your backup, operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week? 

A Yes, they will. 

Q Are both PSAPs capable of receiving ALI, 

A-L-I, and ANI, A-N-I? 

A Yes, they both will.
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JUDGE HAYNES:  Could you explain what those 

acronyms stand for?

MS. SCHROLL:  ALI is automatic location 

identification; that's the actual address of the 

caller.  And ANI is automatic number identification, 

and that's the actual phone number of the caller.

JUDGE HAYNES:  Thank you.

BY MS. SCHROLL:

Q If all 9-1-1 lines are busy, is there an 

overflow location? 

A Yes, there is. 

Q Is that South Com as well? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q Will both PSAPs have emergency power 

sources to serve the basic power requirements of the 

PSAP for a minimum of at least four hours? 

A Yes, they do. 

Q Are both PSAPs capable of handling your 

communication needs in an outage? 

A Yes, we can. 

Q Will the 9-1-1 system be inoperable at any 

time due to maintenance programs or for any other 
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reason? 

A We hope never, no. 

Q Will a logging recorder be utilized at both 

the primary and the backup PSAPs? 

A Yes. 

Q Will system management maintain an archive 

of the tapes for a minimum of 30 days? 

A Absolutely. 

Q Will there be a teletypewriter or TTY at 

both the primary and backup PSAPs? 

A Yes. 

Q Will there be a portable backup? 

A Yes, there will be. 

Q Will TTY access calls have access to 9-1-1 

lines? 

A Yes, they will. 

Q Will management provide adequate training 

for PSAP personnel including TTY training, and 

briefly if you could describe that training program? 

A Yes.  Initially with the new equipment 

installed, there will be a training session 

completed, and then we will test the TTYs on a 
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monthly basis at random. 

Q Can you tell me how many hours of training 

a telecommunicator will receive prior to taking 9-1-1 

calls for the center? 

A All the existing centers that are coming 

into the center, we are hiring those employees, so 

they all have several years of 9-1-1 training.  And 

we will, of course, have our own policy and procedure 

for this dispatch center, but the basic training they 

are all trained now. 

Q So they've met the -- 

(Brief interruption.)

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

THE REPORTER:  I didn't hear that question.

JUDGE HAYNES:  We didn't hear the question.

BY MS. SCHROLL:

Q So the dispatchers who have been hired 

have --

(Brief interruption.)

THE WITNESS:  That's mine.  Sorry.

JUDGE HAYNES:  Is it done ringing?

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Go ahead.
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JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Let's hear the question 

one more time.

BY MS. SCHROLL:  

Q So your dispatchers will have already 

received the minimum 40-hour training required under 

our Part 725? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay.  Will the system have administrative 

and nonemergency lines other than 9-1-1 emergency 

lines? 

A Yes. 

Q Will the 9-1-1 circuits be arranged for 

one-way incoming service to the PSAP? 

A Yes. 

Q Will all 9-1-1 calls be answered and 

handled without preference to the location of the 

caller? 

A Absolutely. 

Q Will automatic dialer-type alarms be 

permitted in this 9-1-1 system? 

A No.  By ordinance, they are not allowed. 

Q Will 9-1-1 lines indicate incoming calls by 
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both audible and visual signals? 

A Yes, they will. 

Q What method will be used for informing 

participating agencies of a 9-1-1 call? 

A They will be handled by voice over the 

radio system and by the computer-aided dispatch 

system which is computerized. 

Q What is the approximate population within 

your proposed 9-1-1 system? 

A $37,981 -- I'm sorry -- people.  37,981 for 

population.  

Q How many access lines are in the proposed 

9-1-1 system?  

A Five land, three wireless. 

Q Let me re-ask the question.  

Access lines meaning residents who 

have telephone service, do you have a -- 

A 19,000.

THE REPORTER:  How many?  

JUDGE HAYNES:  How many thousand?

THE WITNESS:  19,000 total.
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BY MS. SCHROLL:

Q So you have a total of 19,000 access lines 

in your proposed 9-1-1 system? 

A Correct. 

Q Now, how many 9-1-1 trunks from the 

selective router to the PSAP will be utilized in this 

system? 

A Five. 

Q What will be the monthly and non 

re-occurring cost for your proposed system? 

A The initial startup cost for the equipment 

for 9-1-1 is approximately $100,000.  So that would 

be the non re-occurring cost.  And then monthly it's 

about $3,168 per month. 

Q How will your 9-1-1 system be funded? 

A It will be funded -- we will assess each 

community yearly, and then 9-1-1 funding will be 

turned over to E-Com upon approval. 

Q Can we explain that a little bit more in 

detail?  When you say that the -- is there two 

different funding mechanisms? 

A There's the surcharge which is the 9-1-1 
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fund, and then there is an assessment to each 

community based on usage. 

Q And the 9-1-1 funds for each community, 

what will happen to those funds? 

A They will be turned over to E-Com and a 

super ETSB board. 

Q Can you identify the surcharge amount being 

charged and collected for each community? 

A Flossmoor is $1; Glenwood is 80 cents; and 

Homewood is a dollar. 

Q Will this surcharge from each of the 

communities be kept in a separate interest-bearing 

account for the joint ETSB? 

A Absolutely. 

Q Can you please describe the joint ETSB 

membership?  ETSB stands for emergency telephone 

system board.  

A We have a nine-person board, two from each 

community and that does include Hazel Crest and one 

citizen. 

Q And the two people from each community, 

what's their capacity? 
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A Village manager, police chief or fire 

chief.  Village of Homewood is the police chief and 

the Village manager.  The Village of Glenwood is the 

Village manager and fire chief.  And Flossmoor is the 

Village manager, fire chief.  And the citizen is from 

the Village of Flossmoor.  That will change on a 

yearly basis.  

Q So the citizen membership will float? 

A From community to community, correct. 

Q Okay.  Will the PSAP maintain a log of 

9-1-1 system operations? 

A Yes. 

Q Will PSAP management make available to the 

Commission such records as may be required if a 

review of this system becomes necessary? 

A Yes. 

Q Does the PSAP have written procedures for 

calls, tracing calls for the proposed 9-1-1 system? 

A Yes, they do.

Q Will the PSAP management develop standard 

operating procedures for providing 9-1-1 service in 

the event that critical functions of the PSAP are 
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partially or totally disabled due to natural or 

man-made disasters including call box procedures? 

A Yes. 

Q Will PSAP management provide a copy of all 

procedures to this agency for 9-1-1 emergency 

contingency plans, call trace, call repair prior to 

going online? 

A Yes. 

Q Diane, what considerations has management 

made to ensure that the private residential and 

business switch services are provided the same level 

of 9-1-1 that is being provided to other end users of 

the local 9-1-1 system? 

A We are working with each fire department.  

When they go out to do their inspections of the 

facilities, any facility that is over 40,000 square 

feet are being advised of the law regarding the 

location of the caller within a building over 40,000 

square feet.

Q When you say facility, are you talking 

about a business or -- 

A A business.  It would be business, on the 
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business side. 

Q For a customer who has a private switch, 

you have the fire departments visiting those 

different businesses or entities and what are they 

doing?  They're advising them? 

A There is a law that in a building of this 

size, when someone dials 9-1-1, they have to be able 

to locate them within the building. 

Q Okay.  Will PSAP management provide a 

10-digit number to all telephone companies involved 

with the 9-1-1 system for their operator services in 

case of an emergency? 

A Yes. 

Q Please describe the customer premise 

equipment to be used on the telecommunicator 

stations.  

A We're using power 9-1-1 equipment from 

Positron.  We're also moving existing equipment from 

the Village of Flossmoor, and it will all be moved 

over to this facility and hooked up and tested here 

before placed online.  We're going to call forward 

Flossmoor's 9-1-1 calls to Homewood which is their 
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backup at this time.  

Q Explain that again.  

A We're using Positron -- I have a contract 

with SBC and Positron for the power 9-1-1 telephone 

equipment.  And that has been purchased, scheduled 

for delivery already, and then we are also moving two 

existing positions from the Village of Flossmoor. 

Q I didn't understand your last statement 

about call forwarding.  

A Oh, while they make the move, we will have 

to call forward the 9-1-1 calls from Flossmoor to 

Homewood during the move --

Q Oh.  

A -- as backup. 

Q You mean use their backup to handle the 

9-1-1 calls for implementation cutover? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay.  Okay.  Can the 9-1-1 database be 

queried by dispatchers or any other person, or is the 

information only released when the subscriber dials 

9-1-1? 

A When the subscriber dials 9-1-1, their name 
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and address and phone number, of course, will appear 

on the screen to be verified.  But other than that, 

only myself or the deputy director of E-Com will have 

access to the database. 

Q Will PSAP management provide a test plan to 

staff detailing how the system intends to test the 

database and the network prior to cutover? 

A Yes. 

Q Diane, when do you believe the 9-1-1 system 

is planned to be converted over? 

A November 1st of '05.

MS. SCHROLL:  That's all the questions I have 

for the petitioner.  

JUDGE HAYNES:  Based on that last question, I 

have a question.  Does the Commission need to get the 

order out by November 1st?

MS. SCHROLL:  Well, this is Marci Schroll.  

The 9-1-1 system will not be able to 

cut over until they do have their order, so this is 

probably a target date that they're looking at. 

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  We probably can get it on 

the October 25th bench.  I just didn't know.  That's 
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fine.  

MS. SCHROLL:  Generally we ask the systems what 

they're looking for and, again, they tried to give us 

something that's pretty realistic as long as we can 

get their order to them. 

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  I have no questions for 

Ms. Wiessner.  

Did you have questions for Ms. Brown?  

MS. SCHROLL:  Yes, I do.

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Go ahead. 

SELINA BROWN,

called as a witness herein, having been first duly 

sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY

MS. SCHROLL: 

Q Ms. Brown, what are the features associated 

with the 9-1-1 system? 

A The system in E-Com will have automatic 

number identification, ANI, automatic location 

identification, ALI, and selective routing and forced 

disconnect. 
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Q How many 9-1-1 PSAP trunks will be 

provisioned for the primary PSAP? 

A We will be provisioning five wire lines and 

three wireless trunks. 

Q How many PSAP trunks will be provisioned 

for the backup? 

A The backup site currently has five wire 

line trunks and three wireless trunks. 

Q What type of trunking arrangements will be 

used for this system? 

A SBC uses dedicated and tandem trunking for 

the selective router. 

Q Do you believe that the proposed network 

diagram --

JUDGE HAYNES:  We didn't hear that again, 

Marci.

BY MS. SCHROLL:  

Q Do you believe that the proposed network 

diagram provides the required trunking configuration? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Will the telephone company's pay telephones 

within the 9-1-1 system boundaries provide coin-free 
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9-1-1 dialing? 

A Yes, they will. 

Q Will telephone company's pay telephones be 

placarded stating 9-1-1 service? 

A Yes, they will. 

Q Will customer-owned pay telephone service 

providers be notified that 9-1-1 is utilized in the 

proposed exchanges? 

A Yes, they will whenever and wherever 

possible.  SBC has great difficulty identifying and 

notifying customer-owned pay telephone service 

vendors, therefore we can no longer accept this 

responsible in total. 

Q Okay.  Will the primary telephone company 

in its notification to the customer-owned pay 

telephone providers advise them to have coin-free 

dialing and placard their telephones for 9-1-1 

service? 

A Yes, they will whenever and wherever 

possible.  SBC has great difficulty identifying and 

notifying customer-owned pay telephone service 

vendors, therefore we can no longer accept this 
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responsibility in total. 

Q Are there any remote central offices within 

the proposed 9-1-1 system? 

A No. 

Q During and after hours, how are PSAP 

personnel to contact the company if problems occur? 

A SBC has a 24 by 7 9-1-1 resolution center.  

It is located at 311 West Washington, Floor 18 in 

Chicago, Illinois.  And we have a toll-free number 

that they can call.  It's (888) 424-3911 to report 

any and all 9-1-1 trouble issues. 

Q Will telephone company personnel advise 

PSAP personnel regarding 9-1-1 outages, testing of 

equipment and lines or maintenance of 9-1-1 lines? 

A Due to the fact that this is a PSAP 

consolidation, current practice and policy procedures 

remain unchanged.  However SBC will continue to be a 

resource in any and all of these issues. 

Q Will the telephone company train 

appropriate employees in the practices just 

described? 

A Yes.  We will continue to do this.  Because 
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it is a PSAP consolidation, current practice and 

policy procedures remain unchanged.  

Q Will the telephone company equipment 

operate and tolerate power fluctuations or 

interruptions? 

A Yes, it will.  

Q Will the 9-1-1 system be inoperable at any 

time due to maintenance programs or for any other 

reasons? 

A To my knowledge, no. 

Q Will all the company's call boxes be 

equipped with intrusion alarms? 

A Yes. 

Q Can the database be queried by dispatchers 

or any other person or subscriber's information -- 

can the database be queried by dispatchers or any 

other person? 

A Yes, but it's only going to be handled by 

the director and deputy director at E-Com. 

Q Where is your database located? 

A Our database is located in Colorado. 

Q Is the database complete? 
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A Yes, it is.  And we have two redundant 

database sites, Northbrook and Southfield, Michigan. 

Q Does the database have a 1 percent or less 

error ratio? 

A Yes. 

Q How often is the database updated? 

A Let's see.  The database is updated on a 

daily basis. 

Q Is the database backed up anywhere? 

A Yes, in Colorado. 

Q Ms. Brown, when do you believe the 9-1-1 

system will be prepared to be converted? 

A Our target date is November 1, 2005.

MS. SCHROLL:  That's all the questions I have.

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  I have no questions.  

Does Staff have a recommendation in 

this petition?  

MS. SCHROLL:  Yes.  Staff believes that the 

petitioner has met all of the requirements under the 

Illinois Administrative Code Part 725, and we would 

recommend approval of this petition. 

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Is there anything further 
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today?  

MS. WIESSNER:  No.  

MS. SCHROLL:  Staff has nothing.

JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Then this matter is 

marked heard and taken. 

HEARD AND TAKEN.


